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USAID/MERCY CORPS REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH RFA 
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

 
 
 

A. TARGET AREAS 
 
1. Is there a maximum number of rayons/regions to be covered?  Is it considered an advantage to 

cover more than four?  Would multiple partners covering a larger geographic area be an 
advantage? (submitted in advance) 

There is no maximum number of rayons/regions to be covered.  Preference will be 
given to programs that are cost effective and represent a balance between as 
broad a geographic coverage as possible and as high a quality of programming as 
possible.  Please also refer to the RFA: page 2, paragraph 2. 

 
2. Are there preferred target areas such as existing program areas or IDP rayons vs. non-IDP 

rayons? (submitted in advance) 
Preference will be given to programs that are cost effective and represent a balance 
between coverage and quality.  Please also refer to the RFA:  page 2, paragraph 2; 
page 9, numbers 6 and 7; and page 10, number 3.   
 

3. Will preference be given to proposals, which continue or expand ongoing AHAP health 
activities, rather than new or competing initiatives? (submitted at conference) 

4. There is emphasis on “prior community level programming”.  Is this directly referring to AHAP 
programs or does it include other programs/initiatives. (submitted at conference) 

Preference will be given to proposals that take advantage of prior community level 
programming.  “Prior community level programming” refers to any programs or 
initiatives implemented at the community level, not restricted to AHAP initiatives.  
Please also refer to the RFA: page 1, paragraph 7 which begins, “This RFA is open 
to all regions of Azerbaijan. . .” 

 
5. Please clarify how the urban rayons are classified in relation to this RFA and the number of urban 

rayons/regions necessary for minimum coverage. (submitted in advance) 
In line with the classifications of the Government of Azerbaijan, this RFA considers 
Sumgayit to be equivalent to one region/rayon; Absheron to be equivalent to one 
region/rayon; Baku to consist of eleven sub-divisions or districts (equivalent to 11 
regions/rayons for the purposes of this RFA); and Ganja to consist of two sub-
divisions or districts (equivalent to 2 regions/rayons for the purposes of this RFA). 
Any of these fifteen regions/rayons can be counted toward the four or more required 
for minimum coverage in the applicant’s selected target area.  Please refer to the 
RFA: page 10, Selection of Target Population.  Preference will be given to programs 
that are cost effective and represent a balance between as broad a geographic 
coverage as possible and as high a quality of programming as possible.   

 
6. In a meeting with MOH we were told that all activities in one particular geographic area must go 

through UNFPA.  Is this mandatory from RFA point of view?  (submitted at conference) 
Coordination with existing reproductive health/family planning initiatives and 
stakeholders is required.  Those geographic selection criteria that are mandatory are 
given in the RFA including those presented on page 2, first full paragraph and the 
paragraph at the end of page 21 – beginning of page 22. 
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B. PROGRAMMATIC COMPONENTS 

 
1. These two programmatic components are quite different and it will be difficult for some 

organizations to write credible proposals for both components.   Would it be possible to write for 
just one component?  Would it be possible to include an MOU instead of a full proposal for one 
of the components? (submitted in advance) 

Each proposal submitted must include both program components whether the 
proposal is submitted by a single submitting agency or as a partnership.  An MOU is 
not sufficient in place of one component.  Partnerships created to effectively cover 
both components with quality programming are welcome.  It is recognized that this 
may be a challenge; however, after careful consideration, AHAP has determined that 
this is the preferred approach. 

 
2. Will the two components be rated separately?  (submitted in advance) 

Each application will be treated as one proposal, even though each contains two 
very distinct components.  Applications will be rated as per the criteria stated in the 
RFA.  

 
 
C. NUMBER OF AWARDS 

 
1. What is the expected number of awards for this RFA?  (submitted in advance) 

We expect to make 2 awards but there may be as few as 1 or as many as 3. 
 
 
D. FOCUS POPULATION 
 

1. Please confirm that the focus population is married women and married men and not women of 
childbearing age. (submitted in advance) 

2. Please clarify if the male population to be targeted is married men or all men regardless of 
marital status. (submitted at conference)  

The target population is married women and married men with some focused 
activities targeting adolescents.  Married women and married men were identified as 
the target population to be sensitive to the culture of Azerbaijan. 

 
3. Is there any preferred age segment (younger vs. older) among targeted adolescent? (submitted at 

conference) 
There is no preferred age segment of adolescents. 

 
 
E. HEALTH TECHNICAL ISSUES 

 
1. What is meant by sustainable access to contraceptives? (submitted in advance) 

Sustainable access to contraceptives means establishing a system that enables 
communities to access contraceptives on their own during and after the program 
implementation.  Please also refer to the RFA:  page 22, the first full paragraph. 

 
2. What is meant by “health care workers”? (submitted in advance) 

“Health care workers,” throughout the RFA, refers to nurses, midwives, feldshers 
and - when specifically indicated - gynecologists.  

 
3. What are other sources of contraceptives in Azerbaijan besides UNFPA? (submitted in advance) 
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As a minimum, the commercial sector and some NGOs are supplying contraceptives 
to Azerbaijan Please also refer to the RFA, page 18 the second full paragraph, 
“Limited Access to Reproductive Health Services.”  It is the obligation of each 
applicant to conduct research for further needed information concerning the current 
situation not covered in the RFA but affecting the proposed program.   

 
4. If the amount of contraceptives is for a period exceeding the project will this be viewed 

negatively or as part of the sustainability mechanism?  (submitted at conference) 
Applicants are encouraged to provide up to 25% cost sharing/match, which may be 
used for procuring contraceptives.  Match is only applicable to activities carried 
out/materials supplied during the grant period.  Sustainable mechanisms for 
contraceptive supply are viewed favorably.  Please also refer to question E.1 and to 
the RFA: page 22, the first full paragraph. 
 

5. Does USAID/Mercy Corps wish to have a particular family planning method promoted through 
this project?  (submitted at conference) 

There is no one particular family planning method that should be promoted through 
this project.   

 
6. Objective 2 refers to increase in use of effective modern family planning methods. Does this 

mean modern methods or rather methods that are more effective (like IUD vs. spermicide)?  
(submitted at conference) 

The AZRHSO1 indicates that Azeri women have a high reliance on traditional 
methods and a mistrust, low use and poor understanding of modern methods.   Other 
than the IUD, no modern, highly effective method has widespread use in Azerbaijan.   
Thus, the RFA strategy is to improve utilization of modern and effective 
contraceptive methods.    In projecting changes in utilization, the RFA focuses 
principally on methods that are effective, feasible and can be made available in the 
selected geographic area.  The final choice of the methods to be promoted is up to 
the applicant's best judgment taking all of these factors into consideration. 

 
 
F. PROGRAMMATIC ISSUES 

 
1. Should the proposal be a stand-alone program or could it be incorporated into existing 

programming such as an existing community development program or as an added component to 
an existing program? (submitted in advance) 

2. If the proposal starts July 1 but is continuation of a project ending July 31, will this be viewed 
negatively or can the situation be negotiated? (submitted at conference) 

The proposed project must be stand-alone in terms of reporting and monitoring.  The 
measurable results must be distinctly attributable to this project.  Separate 
accounting is required. However, the project can be built upon an existing health or 
non-health program in the chosen target geographic area. Please also refer to the 
RFA: page 6, fourth bullet for further discussion on collaboration with existing 
programming. 
 

3. What are the “local entities” referred to on page 1 item #4?  (submitted in advance) 
“Local entities” are all groups and individuals who are - or who have the potential 
to be - involved with reproductive health including but not limited to: various 
representatives of local government and ministries, NGOs, communities, care 
providers and the private sector.   

 
4. What RH programming is being done in Azerbaijan outside of UNFPA?  And, are people willing 

to travel to district hospitals for RH services?  (submitted in advance) 
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It is the obligation of each applicant to conduct research for further needed 
information (including local level information) concerning the background or 
current situation not covered in the RFA but affecting the proposed program. 

 
5. Does the RFA include addressing facility based STI issues?  (submitted in advance) 

This RFA refers only to community level STI awareness training.  Please also refer 
to the RFA: page 21, the second paragraph under “Community Level Interventions.” 

 
6. The term “peer education” seems often to refer only to adolescent peer educators.  Can you 

confirm that in this RFA, peer educator refers to adult peer educators?  (submitted at conference) 
The term refers to both adolescent and adult peer education. 

 
 
G. MINISTRY OF HEALTH 

 
1. The RFA mentions information about the Ministry of Health, Primary Health Care Reforms and 

Reproductive Health Centers, please expand on this information.  (submitted in advance) 
It is the obligation of each applicant to conduct research for further needed 
information (including local level information) concerning the background or 
current situation not covered in the RFA but affecting the proposed program. 

 
2. Do we need to submit a letter/formal statement of support from the Ministry of Health or the 

National Reproductive Health Office (NRHO)?   (submitted at conference) 
This is not mandatory, however a plan of collaboration with other stakeholders 
including the GOA is required.  Please also see the RFA page 6, fourth bullet point.  

 
3. Is there a national plan for distributing/starting implementation of the new NRHO strategy?  

(submitted at conference) 
Please contact NRHO directly 

 
4. The new NRHO strategy is not yet in the districts - as it is not officially shared - what is our role 

in educating regional/ national health officials in this strategy?  (submitted at conference) 
Please contact NRHO directly 

 
5. Does the MOH permit/support social marketing of contraceptives?  (submitted at conference) 

Please contact the MoH/NRHO directly and refer to the NRHO strategy document. 
 
 
H. OBJECTIVES/INDICATORS 

 
1. Please explain the “if applicable” notation on Output Indicators 1.5 and 1.6  (submitted in 

advance) 
Because the health facility rehabilitation/improvements portion of the project is 
optional depending on need, the indicators referring to the 
rehabilitation/improvement portion of the project (i.e. 1.5 and 1.6) will be used only 
if applicable.  Please also refer to the RFA: page 21, third paragraph under 
“Community Level Interventions.” 

 
2. Are implementers expected to conduct a survey or an evaluation at the end of the project in 

relation to the project Objectives?  (submitted in advance) 
Applicants are expected to conduct a survey of the target population at the end of the 
project to determine the percent increase in family planning knowledge and percent 
increase in the use of modern family planning methods.  Please also refer to the 
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RFA: page 10, section D “Program Monitoring and Evaluation Indicators,” and 
page 20, paragraph 1 and 2. 

 
3. Can the Azerbaijan Reproductive Health Survey 2001 (AZRHS01) be used as a baseline for 

geographic areas not covered under the survey using approximations based on commonalities in 
general rural populations?  (submitted in advance) 

Yes, AZRHS01 may be used as a baseline. 
 
4. Objective #3 is “Percent increase in health care workers providing quality family planning 

services, counseling, and promotion.”  How will “quality family planning services, counseling 
and promotion” be measured?  (submitted in advance) 

Applicants will need to propose the specific indicators and methods that they will use 
to measure improved “family planning services, counseling and promotion.”   

 
5. As the target population includes males, what type of baseline data will be required for this 

group?  (submitted at conference) 
Please establish your own baseline data. 

 
6. It appears that all Output Indicators in the RFA refer to results Objectives 1 and 2; please explain 

the how Output Indicators relate to Objective 3?  (submitted in advance) 
Yes, all Output Indicators refer to results Objectives 1 and 2.  The Output Indicators 
that relate to/feed into Objective 3 are as follows: all Component 2 Output 
Indicators (i.e. 2.1, 2.2. and 2.3) and Component 1 Output Indicator # 1.3. 

 
7. Please clarify what is meant by “mechanisms for dialogue/information exchange” in Output 

Indicator 1.4 of Component 1.  (submitted in advance) 
This indicator is directed at improving the communication among the different levels 
of stakeholders in the Reproductive Health arena.  Examples of mechanisms might 
include, but are not limited to: monthly meetings of stakeholders, workshops, 
networks, etc.  Specific appropriate mechanisms will depend on the local situation. 

 
8. Are there limitations as to what level of emphasis can be placed on rehabilitation and equipment 

upgrading projects responding to Output Indicators 1.5 and 1.6.  (submitted in advance) 
There is no specific limit on the level of emphasis that can be placed on health 
facility rehabilitation/improvements.  Health facility rehabilitation/improvements 
can be made to the extent needed to appropriately address the overall purpose of the 
RFA (page 1), which is “to increase the level of knowledge of families and health 
care providers in Azerbaijan about safe, effective options for spacing children….”   

 
9. Must all the Output Indicators be included in the RFA or are they illustrative?  (submitted at 

conference) 
The Output Indicators are not illustrative; they must all be included.  The only 
exception would be Output Indicators 1.5 and 1.6, which may be excluded if they are 
not applicable as described in question H.1.  Please also refer to the RFA: page 10, 
Section D “Program Monitoring and Evaluation Indicators.” 

 
 
I. BUDGET 
 

1. Is 25 % matching (for program submission) mandatory?  (submitted at conference) 
No, it is not mandatory; but applicants are encouraged to provide up to 25% cost 
sharing match as per the provisions of 22CFR226.23.  
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2. Should the budgets for each component have separate indirect costs or should a single budget for 
indirect costs be submitted?  (submitted at conference) 

Applicants are required to submit a single proposal, even though it will have two 
distinct components.   Indirect costs should be charged to the budget in accordance 
with the provisions of the Applicant’s NICRA agreement with USAID.  

 
3. Can funds from this Health RFA be used as a loan (to be paid back) to procure contraceptives?  

(submitted at conference) 
No, USAID grant funds cannot be used as a loan in this manner. 

 
 
J. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

1. Is there a preference for international versus local staff for the 3 key personnel?  (submitted at 
conference) 

No 
 

2. Will USAID/Mercy Corps assist in the clearance of contraceptives in terms of VAT, customs and 
support documentation such as certification of humanitarian cargo, etc.?  (submitted at 
conference) 

USAID/Mercy Corps will not provide any logistical support.  Other types of support 
that are specifically within the terms of the bilateral agreement will be provided. 

 
3. Can one organization submit two separate proposals - one with the NGO as the prime and one 

with that same NGO as the sub?  (submitted at conference) 
No 

 
4. Will external TA for Component 2 be considered as key personnel?  (submitted at conference) 

Applicants can propose external TA for Component 2 as key personnel.    
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